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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of PayU Payments Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consoclidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PayU Payments Private Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘the
Group’) and its associate, as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and aother explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS")
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its
associates and joint ventures, as at 31 March 2023, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income}, consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its
associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI"
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fufilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 42 in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which describes that the Holding
Company’s application for authorisation to continue operating as a payment aggregator was returned for certain
clarifications / action points as stated in the said note. The management has submitted the responses and also,
subsequent to the balance sheet date on 10 April 2023, has submitted the revised application to Reserve Bank
of India which is pending for further evaluation as on date. The management is confident of getting the
authorisation in due course. Our opinion fs not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's Board of
Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash fiows of the Group including its
associate in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its assaciate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associate to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group and of its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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0. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the Act, we

exercige professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit We alsa:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whelhar
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misctaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulling from error, as fraud may involve
codlusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral:

= Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act we are alsg respansible far
expressing our opinion on whether the Heolding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals:

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ar conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and joint ventures to continue
ag a going concern. If we canclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, i such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's repart, Howevear, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates
and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern; and

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represant the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presantation,

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information/ financial statements of the
entities of business activities within the Group, and its associate, to BXpress an opinion on the consalidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent
auditors,

11, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

12,

timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit {including other
comprehensive income) of ¥ 150,78 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.
These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion
an the consolidated financial statements, in 50 far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited financial staterments / financial information. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requiremeants below, are notl modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the financal
statements certified by the management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the Holding Company and its subsidiary company whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act since none of such companies is a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the Order
reports issued by us of companies included in the consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such
companies.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statermnents;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in ‘Annexure A’ wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion: and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii. ~ The Holding Company and its subsidiary company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

lii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 40(B)(d) to
the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {(either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or its subsidiary companies to or in any person(s) or entity ies), including foreign entities
(‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiary companies (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like

on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries; sz
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b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company have

represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 40(B)(e)
to the accompanying consalidated financiat statements, no funds have been received by the
Holding Company or its subsidiary company from any person(s) or entity(ies}, including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us or the other auditor to
believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary company have not declared or paid any dividend during the
year ended 31 March 2023

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which
has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not
applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0601076N/N500013

N w@j&
Neeraj Goel

Partner N
Membership No.: 099514 NG
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DRGeoN

AceS:
UDIN: 23099514BGSCNK4595

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 June 2023
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ANNEXURE 1
List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
Subsidiary Company
1) PayU Innovation Private Limited
Associate Company

2} PayU Finance Private Limited {up to 22 December 2022)

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of PayU Payments Private Limited ('the Holding
Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘the Group'), its associate
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and its associate company which are companies covered
under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

The audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the aforementioned subsidiary, which
is @ company covered under the Act, and reporting under Section 143(3)(i) is exempted vide MCA notification no.
G.S.R. 583(F) dated 13 June 2017 read with corrigendum dated 14 July 2017. Consequently, our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAIl and
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of
their report referred to in the Other Matter(s) paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its
associate, as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’'s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of PayU Payments Private
Limited on the conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statemenis

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management overide of controls, material misstaterments due to efror or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controle with reference to finaneial
stalements o future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial controis with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedunes may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn and based on the consideration of the repart of the other auditor on internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements of the associate company and, the Holding Company, which are companies
covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls
with reference o financial statements criteria established by the Company considenng the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Other Matier

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to one
associate company, which is a company covered under the Act, in respect of which, the Group's share of net profit
(including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 150.78 lakhs for the vear ended 31 March 2023 has been considerad in
the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements of the
associate company, which is a company covered under the Act, are unaudited and our apinion under Section 143{3Ni)
of the Act on adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate, which is a company covered under the Act, ks solely based
on the coresponding internal financial controls with reference to financial statements certified by the management of
such company. In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us by the managemant,
these financial information is not material to the Group.

Our opinion ks not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the internal financial controls
with reference io financial statements certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Heg-imralinﬂ Ma.: 001 DFEM‘NEUDUj 3

Sy i .
N eta A
Neeraj Goel |
Partner s

Membership No.: 099514
UDHN: 2300959514BGSCNK4595 - -

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 June 2023
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Fayl! Paymenis Private Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2023

3B Right of use assets (¥ in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)
Description 31 March 2023 31 Muarch 2022
Carrying amounts alt
Right-ol-ige assels 3.281.29 2.070.30
Total 3,281.29 1.070.30
Year ended 31 March 2023
Deseription Building Computer Total
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as af 01 April 2022 280435 G202 3,737
Additions during the year (Refer note 36) 1,516.73 53261 2,049 34
Drisposals - -
Balance as 2t 31 March 2023 432108 I, 456,68 577171
Accumulnted depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 1,205.77 45230 | B5E.07
Depreciation charge for the vear {Refer note 36) 470.0% 368.28 B3k 36
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.675.85 B20.58 1AMAS
Closing net enrrving amount 164522 G, (i 3.281.29
Year ended 31 March 2022
Deseription Busklehing Compuler Total
Cost or deemed cosi
Balance as at 01 April 2021 258677 344.12 3235089
Aubditions during the year (Refer maste 36) - 570 ) 579.90
Disposals (B242) = (82.42)
Balames as at 31 March 2022 1804.35 92402 3,718,537
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 B35 19726 W76
D¢ precistion charge for the year {Refer note 36) 40539 25504 Gl 43
Disposals - - -
Balance as 4t 31 March 2022 1,205.77 452,30 i 65807
Closing nel carrying nmount 1,598.58 471.72 207030
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Payll Faymests Privaie Linvited
Hetes Lo Consolidaind Financial Statements for the year endied 31 March B023

A

i Lakh, unbess sted o o e

3 March 1025 3 Alareh 2023
Invesimeni
44 lsvestmend in Associzios -
Unguated invesimenis cnrriod 54 ool
I 100,277 {Fully peid wp compubsoeily converiible prefierence shares of € 10 sach) in Payl . T H IR 44
Fissmee Indsa Privale Lesited (J03T : 27, 100,27
Deemed invesiment in Paylf Finance India Private Limited « Walue of perenios i b . 123226
BB particn
Sub-toial - M1 BT
Uiber invesimsenis -
Uaguited imasimests carried st fuir value thiroisgh Other Compacheasive Income
Fully paid equity sharcs of § 10 gach - 61,320 (2022 : 60,535 (Fully patd up oguily sharrs TS THEIE
ol ® 10 each in Mational Msyment Corpomtion of |nda)
Fully paidl equity shaves of ® 10 cach - 2500 (2033 ; 3510 (Pully paid wp equity sheres of 034 oI5
£ 10 each in Fertene Private Limiled §
Sub-tatal LA T4
. AL
{ither financial awcty
Sm.gurrent
Security depeails 136 30 pa 1 0]
_E A
Cureemd
Sh:l.u'l.n- depasils Td.2% Lk H
Commissann receivabls A4, M B3R &0
Unclaimed badasces revenvables B, 7EL00 305,37
AMC receivahley 2340 =
Chbeer receivables 512024 5541 50
140,697, 78 105
10, 03808 314
Iheferned tan assei T baitics (o)
Ielerred Bax assoisd|Babilsiles) consksts of
ook to depreciation differencs {18 78460} {13,670 2K)
Ermploves tenefils A2 HER
Camry forwmd of basiness loss. 2237 00 12,980 K7
Umabaoibel dcprociation 0 g 35 1343 T
Allowance for deulnlul trade nocoivablen. 15957 741
Inelerred ks assets {netp A T040 £77R10

Deforredl Eax asscts recogs i

Mate In vt of cosservariest and th abeosce of resscasble censmity that fetare texshls profits will be svailable ogasat wich temporary dilfermes can

b utilised i deferred tax assls bave been teceghoed an ay emporany difoesces and usused wx lossss

Tan assers (net)
Non-gurren|
THIS recerecrahil; THT26 4 A9R &l
T30 o4 F9E0
{lber macks
HNun-curroad
Prepahd et ET.5R &%
Advanoe paysesl o EROT tiust |2 A2 67 4 A &9
Currenl
Trode ndvanics el 10 B4R 05
Less: Allrwanes For kol and doubifsl shvanoes - -
il 300 HEE. 05
Focpad n:l:um: 2142 SH1,0E
Haluscg with govemment authonoes [ Y [NE A
Provrissn apains Service tax receraahle {ET A0 (ET.66)

" ;.
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Nirbes in Consslalatod Finaacial Siniesents far the yvear ended 31 March 2023
1T in Lakh, wniess siied acherwisel

51 March 2023 3 March 2032
ke pecevealibe &) 13 180
3345 pATHT




Payl! Payments Privaie Limdied
Mates In Consedidaind Finpncinl Statements for the year ended 31 Marnch 2025

B Trade reccivables #
{Reler soie 2R Fee amounts dus feom ofbor rolabed parties)
Uasseured, soasilereal gosd:
Tmde receivahles
L Alowasce Tor had asd deubilul dcbiz

A Contrssl balanee
Temle reesivable

Cisilract Rabdlilios
Ml warce Thodn € uweiers

W Mlovement in oomimcl Ribdbilies halases iuirisg the year
Contract lsbilites

(kprning halasse
Add Addnion duiing the year
Liss Adfisted during B yea
Closing halance

Trashe revefvable ageing

Lo D o & meaib iw

| Particnlary I Vewry

0 i Lakh. sinless slaled afherwiech

31 March 2013

14.676.41

51 March 2031

10,508, | 2

14T, A ¥

14,676 43

15,12
r e o g

10549 13

44 By

dd &7

s ding fd tlien g s nds beeem e daio o pasmmani

Jmpis

kL)
mar 1M &7

Iﬂ.,"iﬁ#‘.fﬂﬁhﬂhf 184 Rimrch 2603 | [T [T
bim el 2t [ e LE]] [ Th

14878 43
16, 15 1

[This spe ke been keft blank migniiorally)

W

T i




Pay Ll Payments Privats Limiged
Mirtes o Consalidabed Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 March 323

M

3E

Intangibles under devcloposmi
Far ihe year ended 31 March 2023

Partialars
Capital work-m-progaess
Tokal Caplisl wark-in-pregres

Ceanalmill
Far ihe vear esadid 3 Manch D921
Ukese i pilon

Halssior as w1 31 Marck DX

At mcluded in dupousl prowgs clasaifed as el for sade (reler Bale
21}

Adnudmeris

Jmgainment

Balsner i ot 3] Maseh DY

Aty nchaled in digpoal o clas fed as el for sade | efer mole
el

Adpndimrzis

Irepainmeni

Balamoe i @l 11 Maseh D313

Ineangibile assis
Fer the vear enided 31 Mlarch 2003

I piplinem

G ress canrrying vader me ol 1 Apeil 2023
Aubditions durmp he yem

[nnpeml’ gl pasmerns

Exrwis emrrymmg vabuo an af 3 Mlarch 2075
Accamelaind smsrtiiion a5 @t 00 April 22
Iegpairment (K offor mose A1)

[spoaal 'l pstiicnits

Acrunmlaicd amertiastion as @i 3 March 2023
Carrylng value as i 31 March 2028

For ghe peviod ended 51 March 2022

D riptien

Giros carmying valwe as ai 0] Ageil 2021
Addkitinea during the vear

Trpesal adjusimania

Wireas carrying valer o sl 31 March 2033
At lised @mertio fon o st §1 April, 2020
Adiinoms diriay the jear
laipuasmerl { Refer nole 41§

Thxpmsal adjusiramis

Aueemulated smortiation s 31 March 1022
Carrying valer s 0 3 Mareh 1012

&

i in Lakh, snles stwied atherwie)

MMarch W1 3 March 21
- 1435 0%
: i

U ter

Tradeomark [ATTIEITE Taiad

FYLEXT]
T TH

eelstionshlp
172708 4, TE S0 [ T]
" & bl

441267

171700 LINLIN IAIET

sl
187 %%

1. )51 ER LTi2A% EQ TS
(18 IR EALE

T

|.m:1'a 1.991.21 £,579.5%

24ETT

.'HH._ 14 I, TAE. TR %

Crmipmaier

Trademark Cashamer Taial

&5

173700 o, TEE D 106595

(AR A]|

pEL L ry
LI935

172700 4, 7h8 0 1045981
138300 241380 EEET
o8 iR mm

337751
1

%102
[ L7145 BI44 TS
- nm = Lo




Fayll Paymenis Frivase Limided
Motes be Coasolidaled Financial Seatemcnls for the year coded 30 March 2023

10 Creh and cash cquivalents

Halances with banks

1epoea with origing matuney of lets than 3 month
Il [Rank balances other than shove

[adanges m tanks®

[epusil with oniginal magerity of loss than 3 meniks®
Balanie with bank as 1otm deponats with maturty more o § sontks ™=

* Hepeesents amsurnts holid in Cigrus wallel by customers. (Helor moie 1T}

(T in Dakh, unlevs stslod olherwing)

31 Miarch 2023 31 March 2023
5338784 CEIEY
'8 022100 S50
53484 A.7e1M
1,715%] [ RET- ]
18015 360

b0 58 IRLM
BT ik | e

E——

** Repicienis ameui) pledped with bisks Tor cofporaly guaneiogs, charpebacks and othor puiposes.

-
é/g 5 (@
{This spesce B boen Jeit blank inienii




Pavl! Payments Privaie Limbied
Mates 10 Conslidagod Finssgial Slatvments for the yearended 31 Manch 2023
Payll Faymesis Private Limited

Moles o Consolidalad Financial Statemonis Tor (he yoar raded 2 Sarch 20035 (T In Lakh, vnless simed aolerw eed
51 March 2013 31 Magch 10EX
11 Equity share cagitsl
Autharied share eapital
0 A o0 20T 3,300, 0050 000} Equay shares-of £ 10 each 250,005 D 250,005 04}
S S0 000 [ DO2 2 R 9S00 Preferenos shares of ¥ 140 sach .05 00 59,945, 00
bamll, dmleetribid and pahl up capitad
Eguity share
2065 BT 0T Equity shares of 10 each (3022 2004 005 484) lully paid up 304 K 90 200,401 54
P, ot Ak, 88
Manher of shanss HMumber of ibaees
Brcanciliatlon of ihe sember of eguity shares
Bakance af the beglnming of the year JOREN2EAR 1985215568
Aeddi: lssueed duning e year (Felier note 18) 1 2503 543 47 Al 015
Balance af ihe eal of the year LG ATROET OGS40 484

(K3

Rights sitacksed in equity share
The Company has tisped only eag koo of aquity shares havisg 2 par valoe of € 0% por shape. Ench bodder of equity shaes i entitled te ane volg per share
Righis Bawe
Dharing the year e company bas issued shares al viios insances Seils of whach e aa Tollows.

Parviculars %o aff dhares Iremium Al dale
Sheeen allotted to BIH Poyments |okdings B.Y. 12,803,543 2 10 14-Sep. 22

letalls of shares held by cach sharchalder hollling mare than 5% shanes 3

Mamie of sharcholdeor

A0 Indis {Msuriziosh Limiged (Parent Oosapasy

Mo, ol sharow LAGT AL 26T 1,862 BEY 26T

Bisdding % 4T Tiee

A Payimests Habdiog Y,

Mo of shares $E3 974 760 STLATLINY

licdding s e 3 e T

Payvll Glabal B.Y.

M. ol vhares . -

Halding % . :

Slanes beld by promoler at themd of the year

Promoter name Mo of % Chasgy during the

Sharm e of toal shars year

BAIH Esalis [Msisiae) Limaed {Pargm Compaay ) | Ad2 E54 207 Tl 4T 0 45%

MllH Payments Blekling 0LV, SE3 974, 76 A 14505

Totai — T howe, [T

— E—

Dieher equity

{Refer Sasiement of Changes in Bquity)

Sevarilks feemium 1336167 26010

Reimned carnongsFL ) [h15.524 235 1118 L4T a5,

Wt earmn g O] 411 Hs FN 65

Procmsd copiial coninduiion 25127 92731
(T4 ) (BRI 5.95)

Dseription of aature snd purpase of rch rmene

Secaritees prem

Sorurities premeem is el b reoend the promicm {eooes over face valoe) on issue of shares, which will be anlinal s seoondasee with peendsinm of the
fLT

Retsined earnings

Retmna carmmps wro covatesd fom the polit /o of the Cospany, 55 5iljioed e dislibaliomm Lo awmdn, bl ia olher reserves, cic

Capital reerve

Capital reserve repiesents the Jiffencocs hotweom valeg of the nel assets irmsliomed in the cosrse of business combinsmions mnd the considerasion neccived for
sk combmations

Dersied eapital contribution

Under the employes ibaed bened paysenl plos, s ceplinos of the Company was pranied siock optioas of the Maspers Limied The plas wis assesued,
-lﬂllt?._ildlﬂ-llﬂ-ﬂﬂ-m‘dh} Manpirs Limited. The plms pranied o emplovees wene equity setthald The Company scorued fir thise granty oy eqosty seithal
by debising employee siock com permmtion expesse md croditing decmed capital contribution in eguity.




Fayl’ Payesenis Privade Limbed
Mores 8o Cpmnolidated I'.lltﬂﬁﬂlrltltl.llrﬂtrﬂfﬂﬂﬂﬂ March 2023
Payl! Payments Privale Lisbicd

Mpdes In Consedidasted Financial Siaiements for the year endied 31 March 10238 1 in Lakh, ualesy slaled ofberwisch
A March 2023 31 March 1021
14 Provisions
Ron-cErTena
Comtpenaaiod swgnoes 400 50 &b 51
Ciemluity (Helcs mate 264 47213 AT
]dll-ll.l ARTSE
Current
Compensated absenoes 16918 i X1
Gratuity (Reler soie 36§ HZ 44 3401
I71.K3 11236
18  Ouber limbilities
Non-curresl
Employes siock optiens plan payable (Refier note 27) 2A B 350189
LATi IR S I
Current
Employe: steck opteens. plas payahle { Reler neto 27) 1179793 WA TE
idther habilsezs
- Begurily depenits recorved (rom merchaniz ENE st 2O 4
- key -
Statuiory babsbaiy 131671 I, TET A%
1730799 13, TAH.E5
I Trade paysbles
Trode paryables
= Total ouisianding decs off micre end small cnlcrpeises (Rolier note 345 132 15763
« Tetal eutsiandisg ducs of credhion other thas micre and small emerprees S A5 46 4,464 3K
pRS AAFE
Trade payable sgeing
Cnuamling fisi fallaning p o duy A
Lun ki |
Fartiruilars Nens Ead Voars 1-2 Yesrn I3 Venrn e Thai 3 v Taial
(Y111 Bl Ml 208 1.4 (IR H]
Flar Alurrly 202 kSRl = [LEE 1]
(=t Fiil Bbarch 02N 30 HT il a 5 5,435 54
3o Blaah Hrh A w £F 13 £584
Tt Tiaele Favubde Flar hfsch 00 LN 2048 1,503 08
Mo Riagch Wod ki 1x31 bazd i

& @Fj S



Payll Paymenis Private Limited

Notes ke Consolidated Financial Statemests for the year caded 31 March 3023

Iv

Deher fAnpncial liakililos

Non-curresi
Imeres accrond bt pol due on bomeweags

Current

Payabla for cost of services.

Imzicst acenued bet nod due on boarowings
Fapetas pavahl:

Charpeback puyali

Emplioves besefits pavable

Amamin| refimdable 10 consumen
Peayelsle o relased parties

L lighnlities

B rum ings

U meegiired
Mon-curren| bormewings
Dhbemiuics

(4,283,367 §%a dedeniures of € 100 eack, maturing e 13 Juse 2027, fully 3nd compalsarily
comartible inlo cquity shares i be comaned ot the end of § years, e 13 Jume 3023 o il
fair valoe of equity shaies In be delermingd ai the fime of pedempison, alonp with intenes

mociued theteon - alsn refior nota 28)

Unsecurnl
Uil Hormwings
Deheniures:

4280 15T B debentures of @ 100 cach, matwring on 1} Jane 2023, (ully asd compuliorily
oorverti e ime equty thares tn by comverted ai the md of 5 vears, Le, 13 Jung 2020 ai the
[ valee ol equty shates w be desermined & the tims ol nadessption, along with s

acurued theroom - alee refer sole )

(T b Lakh, unbe seaned atherwine
I Meareh D0EX 3 Mwrch Bogd
- | i 2
= TS
418218 L1 Ry
1,520, 5% -
D 1T
1000 el 65
EETENY TArRE
LTa 171365
2436,14 [
1 45 45 JA5E e
P —
: 4.3
4,263 39 5
4,1813% FETTET]

Mﬁlﬁ 4




Payl Payments Brivale Limitrd

Mates 1o Censolidaicd Finascial Statements for the year ended 31 March MiEs

i

I

Hevemse Trom ofserstions

(kher eperaiing revenues

- Stup and astograiion foes
= Mayment pulswey veppoen deivises

TRaageregatisn of revenae

(% in Lakh, unless sinied o rw o)

31 March H23 31 MBasch J03E
297 0 56 o a b
1] . ] LR
734,31 1,541 35

Hevens: manly comprise e of servicos. All customers of the Company me lecaied within India. The Ssagprogation of the Compamy's

revenues [Tom omtracts with cuesomers is geen belsa

Farticulars

Revenue from cosiracts wilh custamers
i Zales of weraces

(M} Cher Operalisg Fevefis:

Tetal revenve covered under lnd-A% 115

Moz Contiol in all reverse Iramactions in mansferrod al & poini in tme

[rher incaine

Inteieid incoms
= Blank deporion
- Encoine mx refands
- Sccusity depanits
Muicellancous tnoome

Ciant of mervioes

Paymeni gamewsy oot
Heating and haradwidih expenses
Chbsar cosl of services

Esijplayer bracfits exprer

Salanes asd allowances.

ESOH" oxporses [Reler moiz 2T)
Chratiity eageensa [Refor note 16)

Crndsihutions to providen! and other funds (Relsr ot 16)
Sl wellare expenses

Fingher comts

mleresd oxporas
Harmoings
=Leane

<Seuiiry doparil

muﬂlmﬁhm
Dheprecistuon en wnpble et frefis oo 34}
Deprociation on night of e s | el sole M)
Amertiiahon on misagible assets (rofer nose JE}

M Mllsweh 2003 A1 Mareh 2022
T A 56 8.1 20 53
21157 182006
T, P
B9 b Al
% 277
1914 1855
174K 3h 196726

JASSST 108504

Pl R ITLINR1S
1T 2EZ1HEN
1.81&R1 1684 60

—, TS

300 A 21 E50 5
10, i (s I
o 24550
1,295 52 7% &6
L5 TS 14617

A&

432 =6 43707
4 K2 .07
l!--ﬂ'_ LE T
AN Zise
5244 [4EDM
EIR 34 f0A%
33573 THT.0T

& - !



Payl! Fayments Frivate Lismilol
Mutes 1o Cemalidaied Financial Sialcmenis for (e year ended 31 March 2023
(% i 0 sk, aimbesas stabed adbierw ise)

A1 Marck 2023 31 March P22
Payl! Faymenis Privaie |isdied
Sepden o O lidsied Fi il =4 Tur the yoar ended 31 March 2013
% in Lakk, unbess stated sthorwise)
I Blmrrh TN TP Mmeeh BART
15 Orheer eapriecy
Aulverremesl il sakes peomiotion FRBE a3
Aumdinnrg” resmu e ateen 3750 ¥ay
- Statuiory audit oo L] B ss
= P of other services 115 120
- Rgimbricsmt o exporses 1.50 .57
Bl debn 1531 B
o L slion TEM HIX 5K
Conferoncy oouis 4% X3 1558
Elecimsiy 235 41 TR
lraurang e ] Bl.36
Lel anl pinlesiogal M 1.BRE B4
Lamis m e gn sumency imessctions and iranskations, sot . 140,43
Managereem wavace charge L TR 0%
CHTice mainberans 12 89 143,18
Provision Sof chaipeback N1 i o
Fuames, saves and foes 43T K9 HTaT
Hecuilmem 17220 113,54
L= 2 50 112
Frpmers and mainkenance e 44 T R
Saall cosi of CoBERCT 308 |0 IFT 8T
Subscription charpes 54 86 bl 2 L
Trenvelling s cosveyancs GHT EH 2ITE
Pediscellaneous ST0 M 4KR Kl
r— 1257188 Iaﬂlﬂ-
7, \
bl II
."-\. Fj
L b - o o’

Faln s fin S ot Aol




Pevl! Paymeits Privale Lissiind
Netes o Consedidated Finsncial Stalements for the year ended 31 Alarch 2023
(% in Lakb, yedow stdod otherwie)

2, Emploves benellts

{heffeveal cvmtrtbution pless

The Company pays providem fand consributens o the Begonal Providem Fusd Commsissioser i per the Employees” Providest Furids md Miscellancous. Prosisions Acl,
1932 The Company kit e Minker payseat obligalions ance e contiibutions haw boo paid The conttibebions e accousted for s defined contrébulion plars and are
revnpsnsd s cmpleyes benelils expenss when thoy ame due.

Diering the yoar, ihe Company has recognized the follewiag ameunts i the Sistement of Profls ssd Loss
51 March IN1F X1 March DOIT
Cpmiribvistisad 1o praviden) and othes funds 129552 BT B
oy
- Ceenpemaiey] absences
In mcoedancs with Ind AS 19 - Employee Beneflits, e scimnal valsation lor the sferesaid delingd "benelin’ plans is baved on e Seluwing aswsnpinm

Cam ahwnees 1 raimin

31 March 2023 3 March 30k} 3 ABarch B3 31 Mlarch 2033
Edrecinaiil idde T34 T2 T3 71.3%
Salary escalain e 500 LR e B M 10.00%
Exgeoted funere working il e 800 ITan |
Montadity table IALM (2002-2004)  TALM {2003-2004) AL (I 22040 AL (201220 04)
Withdrawal raies (In %=age)
Ui 1y M yeank HooAs 1700 2% 0% 1700
Frem 31 to 44 years Hine 17KRG 20 17007
Albave 44 years 5000 1'Firs 4 i 17.00%
(AD U hissges @ the present vitee of sbligaton
Present walue of obiigabon o o the beginnmg of The yeor 53274 A GESAT kLRl
lrbenee ol ued 20 4574 TRy
a1 Befwieed cdal . : 3, a
Cusresl servics ool 1870 Lk S 2HKRI RALTH
Um-!ﬂl.'l-pld e U 1] R 7] (EL3T) | 0 35
Actuarial {gainy' loss on ebligaiion 41.54 (844 1% (A1)
Freseni value of ubligation ss mi ilse end of the year BIFLER T P KR AT
{0 Changes in U Tair valoc of plan ascts
Fait Valus of plan assis at the bapining of the year - - FL RN 18 b4
Aiual revers on plan sssets " . T .19
Coninkaiiones = . - 2
Bt paid = B, 3 E
Aiuarel g i foss ) For Wk year on axscl . 3 5 P
l'lll.'!'lﬂﬂ'phlﬂd:hql the ead of the year " = Pl N1 | 21331
i) Expemas recopaized b the Statemend of Predii and Liss
Cartenl ivias coal T Tl 84 THLRE EAL I
Past servicw coal - - - -
Irerca gl SE 68 290n ST BAT
Ixpecied reoars on plan assets - - N5 A7) (1)
et actwarial igany loss revognized in the year 41 54 L] - .
Exprases recogaired in the Stapement of Profil ani Liss -E'I'.'H ol LEE T 24500

2 ot~ &



Payll Faymesis Private Limiled
Kol 12 Consolidaled Financial Statrments for the year oaded 30 March D3

Payll Pavesents Privede Limie
Mobes (o Commalidaed Finsneis] Sisicsents far the year ended 31 March 2023

(0} Expense Fedognized in alher ossprehomie s

1% in Lakh, snless sinied ofberwise)

Lot pensated absciors Lty
il -Hﬂ 31 Msreh P22 X1 March 2023 31 Mhsreh QT

Actzatial pain Clins) o plamsal henelis nblgatons . . TR T
Actarial gain Xloss) oo plan peeed P = 21T 231
Vmrecugnised sciuvarml gain Qo) Tor tee vear . . Bilg B2
LE} Amoungs to bs recognized in the Balanoe Shoel
Pt presen value of ohligation 2s 2l the end of the year R ER R rA ] Teh s GRS
Pezi {ar value of plan aseets os m the el of the yes - . 2041 21.30
et wwued [ Bl ) recagnised bs ihe Halasee Shos {RIFLRE) {832, 74) (X741 T
(F) Semsitivity anslysis for the definod beoefil obligatios®
Impact of change in discount rate
Presend velue of ohlgaisen 55 al the end al the vear Rk ER 1M o BES T7
Impaci dwe oo increase in 0 500 (11455 (16 k) { D 3y 2131
Imipaet des; b decrzase in O 5 ] ] 17,80 14 94 2154
Impaet of the change in salary iscrease
Present value of obligaton as ai the end of the vear R B SR THE 38 84537
It dhas B incieass n 0.5 1710 1677 5 &l 3190
[mpact des b decrease in € 5% (1t (16.04) (1632} 20 89)

*“Sensitivities dae o momality asd withdrewals ang nol matenal |iomee, the impact of charge due w these is Bt calcalated

The albsrvty sossibivity anahvas i based on a change in an assampoien while holding all ether axsemptions condast. b practico. this is unditcly 1o ooour, and charsres in soma
off the msumptions mary be coarclaied. When caloulating fhe sossitivty of the dafinad boscfit obligation b sipeificant acbsarial assumplions the ssme method (peesent vales off
the defined benefil oblipation caloulainl with the profeciod unit cresdin meibod ai ihe eed of the repeeing petiod] has been applicd as whes calculating the defined benziit

Rabiliry fecegnised i the halance shect

{7 i apace buas Boen fall Mok svcarsmall

%4 @i(@



Payll Fagmenis Frivase Limiial
Sules 1o Consalidated Fisancial Statpmats far the year ended 38 Alanch JRE1 ¥ im Lakh, uniess stated atheraine

ET. Shaure baurd paymenis

Siepers Linmtid | Masgers'| i ofersd cerlain sophoyess of e Cottigting vasions aguily compersalnes plans, the mapily of which aie el m
ety soadhad In teims of these plans, angplinees are offored awands in the form of cither share sptons, retrsed alock units (RELF) o share

sppeociabion nphis (SAR'L

Tk respe of Whe share optioss afel SAR: 0f cvercme date, Bl comprlenen of e veshing penid, awands me setiled with cimphopees @ 1he aquiry
it of Maspers Limed & 15 sabiidianes fod equity-scifled jlai snd in cishi of other sty For cali-seiiled plam, whote applicable. In espect
ol H3Lls, awands ase subomatcally senbed m Maspers Limmad egaily irsinamesis on the vestiog dsic.

The proesp share innes hold Maspers shares (a5 shareholders) i setile pwasds held by employees of the Maspens snd Peosis groop Thee: shere usts
weee foemded by Maspers i sdminiier the Maspers proup sheee schermes (i all smsployvees.

E5Lis ave granied vl an exercne price of oo, ATl SARS e grasicd with an evercise poce of ool leas than §0% oF the Tur value of 1he £AKs on i
date ofl the grast. All icdlal et RELnRARL o cancelled by vt speecmenl botwoen lhe prplanar md enplinee

A, Panpors Resiricied Sieck I'les Trusi (" Naapers RSUk

Uinaler fhe Maopers RSL) plan, share options mry be prasied wih in eeercise price of not b Uas 100% ol e narkel vales of the shares al e tme of
the grant. The Haspars shares are suomahcally seiiled with the pamicipants on thelr rapective veamyg dales. The Mispers Restiicied Stech Plan Trua
may e no s than 200000 awands in sggregaile during ey one Bnancial yes. This plan s clissilied o equityssetiled a0 Mager's vl The
eiling periad i over T years with 75% vasting cach ye

aiEair valui of e optisas
Tt wergrhiend averape Gair valisg Baa boon: calculased by s estervall vhoer usig the Hermialan il eplios pecing sodel, wmiig The follirvrmy
Weighued average e valos o meamsicsnd dale {in 2AR) 338138
Weiphicd mverage cucscing s .
Wiiphied sverage expectod volaiioy (in %) - determinad uing hnilofieal Ssly ahase frcss [F
Weighled sverage splion Bl (in yoan} 250
‘Weiphtcd mocrage Syvidienad yicld {im Tw) (=59
‘Weiphied woermge nisk-fiee inoeres) mmhe (i e haad o soko e bood vield ol peifost filboihing [ AL
i Changes in aplioes during the vear
DE1-13 P B

Particulirs Number al W eigklrd Samber of Weighicd

opliss EVETREE Curreise eplEny AVETARY FLreise

pelee [EAR) price [EAH)

Unlance uf the begmning of the year T = 1.H5 -
Giranted during the year k : . :
Foafeiled dusing i yea i 1% . (T} .
Excrcisal dunng ths year {181} 25000 {459} 2EMLRE
Expied during the vear - L 5 .
Balance al the cod ol he yoar r!._ = H_! =

£l =hare spdion: ouisanding ol the ool f g Tou
Thee e optien oudalending al The ond ol year had remairmyp contractud |ife of &30 pears {2003 QU6 years)

i This space hias irpertnmally|



Fayl! Paymsents Privaie Limsiied

Serrbes be Comnnlidaind Fisancial Stmiements Tor o year eaded 3| March 2023

H. Maspers Fistech BY AR Scheme §'Nanpomn Finteeh®)

Linder the Waspers Findech 1Y Share &pgrociston Bigts (SAR') Scheine, i move than 134 of fhe 1ot manbey of cedinary shoes i availibla G

ELEsir vabae of the S Jy

(% i lLakh, webe siwied st o

TPEHH'HHHflilW*HHMMNMﬂmmEWWWWMMuhHMW

Weag bl avemage Gair value a1 micasoeemenn dare {in LISS)

W' avesage share pee din 1755}

Wiesghtod averape evercms peice (in US4)

Winghted sverape expoossd valitility {in Tl deterimived g hohiical amua] comparny valustions
Wrtghted average optos ife (in yean)

Wieightinl sveig: dividend yield (m %)

Wietghtcd averags rk-(tog imionest mbo {m %a), based om sero e Bond yickd

Woghinl avrape sob-ophimal mie {in %)

Wirightnd avergo vessng period {in years)

B kangs in SAR derisg (he vear

Parliculzr

IBaliess al Uhe brginsiag of e yrar

Cianged duting the year
Mborvprmcmiy | 'l
Forfiosod dunng the year
Enercissd detny e yeai
Exprirad dring the yem
Cancllod during the vea
Taladts &l e cail of B year

A the year end, T3,68% 58 Hs (2002 73009 are vesed and dhe balasee F7,T56 (20020 62 506 | SARs s wrnvestod

ELEAT outstanding a8 gher paal of dise venr by £ReTcie prics

Excrei prces {in LSS

L

46}
8091
REH
EEA L
LERE Y

Exeicse phices (in LIRS}

Mn

4342
4150
.44
= L
iR

L

EE
g
Bt
i
i (M
B
(15
130
202211 Bt -23
Number afl Weighied Sumber of Weighied
apilioas HVTTaEs ruertine wpEan FUETHEE ELETTISE
price (EAM) ke [EAR)
138,15 ITED TR T
{668 BR IS " a
{Lo1) AT {15,350} a0 a4
{2900 72N (R 186) B2 AN
195 448 [T i34, 138 il

A sulstanding

SAKs currenily availabls

Mussher ‘Werghic merage Wesghdiod avesapo

Hurrgisable st Wighted averg:

oulisraling of Tnaming cwpwisn price (im0 Mach 203 execise price (in
30 Maich 7013 conmlraciual life LISE) LIS%)

20 (T3 T 7] ECHT

1484 247 4063 1404 EII ]

1,600 143 4na% a9 4052

1,609 A4 L LKL S 44

iz 125 P 1132 T b

U A 35 95 LK 0,7 iR

5443 A15% TT,E8 F166

o SARsouisiundiag Skl currently vallable

Excrgismble si  Wiiphiod averags:

cutsianbng il remmtinity  owcwciss prige (e 3 Mach 012 ewercioe price [m
30 Mlarch 2027 contractual b g LS

L] 105 39,10 1% 39 b0

1.z 347 406} TR dAnad

L] 456 40493 LSlih)] 4082

110K 33 SE 44 T A 5 44
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FayL! Paymenls Frivare Limiied
Notes be Cosanlidaled Financisd Stalrmenis for Sy yosr eedesd 3 March 1070
(% b Lakl, uibc slalod etlicim b )

L5, Prosus - Maspers BSLL

ahim | Seprember 5010 Mazpers lised its imematisnal ecommence mnd nlemel ssts on Eurones Amslosdan, This Futing has created a sew ghohal
et inkemel proup Frosss MUY (Tormody yrisd inlemational Hoddisgs MV L compreang Maapers's isheine moeicls tutside Soatl A e ol
inchmlen Evestmeris in ooling classifiods, pod delivery, payssonts snd Bstoch, ensl, travel, education mmd sscial s incrnes plalfiens, smong ohem,
Proves 3V, hn o seondry mward lidng oo fho JSE Parmont b the lisiing of Prosos, Mespers provided ils existing shareholiders sn oplion 1o
regeive cither a sborgholEng = Prosis shanes or sldsonal Masgpers shares & so considoaniion. The Trestess made the elocten T the Tiod wee
they ebected the epian B eeore addilional Maapess shares. The Produs shares were then Bakod 1o the outitsid irg ofisi, &0 thal wheh & bencliciany
exerciess their optioss. and ey her erigirad gnka prics thiy will recoive the onpnal Naspers share and the addinonsl Nespers shares linked senc:

b hamery in the shure aplices durieg ihe vear

P s ] anzi-r1
Kumer of Weightal Mumlber ol Weightnd
P AVEFEEE 0T e aplioms. ANTARE EACTChe

price {LARD priee (AR}

Malance a1 the beginning of the year ] + T -

Tramsiers in / {oul} - B ! B

Ciramied dhering the your s s L .

Porderied dereg the vear (1&1) - 2T .

Exercised diming e veas (L] = 1435 -

Esgiied dhaing the yeal . E . s

Balaner af fhe eaad of ibe year [ET3 & EEFF .
i Share apticas sabsanding g the ool of the vear

The shane option aisumding @ the e of oo bad simening cotrsaciund life ol 24 ywaes (2023 06 yoars b




Paxl! Payments Private Limiied
Potes to Comalidabed Fisancial Statemeats for the year endad 31 Narck 1023
¥ in Lakh, unless skaied oiberwingg

. PROSLUS BSU (EUR);:

Prizeen BV Share Anard Plan o Beem interehuced dhming the your, Lissder e Schamne, mo moer than 3% of the &soed share capital of Pross. Y
tury b prantad in (he Prosss BSLL Qe quaner off Be pwands will bo woated on vearly b, Awards under the schemse will b sstiled mnematically
with paiticipaints os vesling die

Al Fair vales of the eptiom
The wrighied average [ar valog has boon calosdptd by g aniomal vaduer iweng the Benmisdan Bincmisl option pricirg model, asirg the kg

zighed pverge fuir vabee o) medsiremesl date (ks FL) &2.71
Welghiod sverage exchcie price (134
‘Wiighriod pvorape e pocied volability (m %] = determinal wing haiorical daily shase prce P
Wiskghnad pveripe optan life (1 veae) i
Weighted sverags dividenad vicld (in %) 0%
Weigived pverage ik ineres e {in Ye), baed on oo ra bond vick] %
Wakzlnad enigpd atind subuoplivial sl () T
eighted averags vesting period (yram) 150
D Chasstes in gulises derin the vear
B2R3Y za21-32
Fartiulam Mumbsr of W pighird Mamiber of Wikl
upisns EVTTAER LTI sprmny wETEEE rLercis

price (EUR) price (EVH)
Hatancr i ihe brginning of the year b |92 . T4, T =
Peborvemenin | By Ol BT *
Cirmmsd el dluarineg i e TR . AT =
Ferfeited during e vous {8055 a {13,733} =
Exermd diming tha yoar {20,058 ) - (54920 -
Expired dursay the vear - - ol .
Halaner a4 the end of ihe year E‘H.] - BA 1Y -
L1 5hare Silhs fetslagding al ibe ool of the yrar

The share option oststanding ai S ond of year had remaising conimcnal Bife of 9 17 years (2023 315



Fas L Paymenis Privaie Limited
Mobes o U osanlifaied Faanclel Salemenls Tor the yesr eaded 3 Varch 1070

(% in Lakd, unires siaivd stherm i)
. MIH Fisech ladding BY SAR plin

Lindes the WIE Findech alding BY Sl Agpecciation Rights {RAR Schane, 5o nove thas 255 of il ntal mumibe of ondisery sharss is svalalile
it Fair yades of the SA BN

The weighted rvemge Dur value has been cadoslaed by an evemal valuer ising the Benmadan Bisomisl option procmyg medel, useg the following

‘Weighted average fair valug 2l mxaurcmeal daio [m LISE) REL)
Wiatglied sversge share price {in LISS) wEn
Weiphked sverage exerciie price [in LS5 S|
Welphbed sveige expecied volanling (0 B4, detenmised esieg Ristoncal snimsl compamy valuations A6 X
Weeiphied seiige oplion |k (m v b I
‘Weighted sverags devidena yickd (in %) L
‘Waighied svpragee o5k -Soc inieves rabe (in el besed on ooro mic bend vicld %
‘Wighied wvorage sabmopdimal e (m ) 15
Werplined aveimge vesling peread (18 year) L&
by hangs in SAR durning the yoar
hogi-i% JiRE)-21

Particulam M e of Wekghoed Minimbser ol Welghoed

ks TETIEE PUETT b @il i HYETEgE £eTe e

price (EAR) price (£AR)

Halanee sl the beginning of the year 130,081 0T EL35E P
Graided dudifng The year 1RE.RSR L=Ei] AR T 1061
Mlosemerris | In Capl ) . " 3 i
Frafeiied during fhe yew - - - -
Fowgrenod diming the yem - . Z ;
Expied during the yvear . ' = .
Cancelled during i vesr = = < s
Balance al the tnd of the yrar Jik, 73 w11 141 Ky

At b year end $2EST SRS T2 20 NI8) mre vested and the balance D65 35 (200 109740 ) 5ARS me umeesied



Fayl! Payments Private Liniied

Nules 1o Comolidaied Fisancisd Stalomonis for The yoar esdod M March 3953

F. Payll Credat BY SA R Flan

(£ in Lakk, unirss stalod sfberm s

Lirelicr tha Payl? Crodit DY Sheee Apparecimiios Pghes (SAR7 Schem, oo mwene than | 5% of the selal mumber of oidinary sbanes b avalable o tose

b Fair vadey of ihe SA Ry

The weiphled mverags fur valos has boen caloslatcd by an external valuer mang the Bemmedan Bisomsial opion prcng madel, uss the following

Wiphied wverg (air valec ai messurcinesl A | LS5

Wieigihed pversge slare price fin LISS)

Weighted sversge exerciic price m 1155)

‘Wighied svenge expecied yolanliny (0 %, detenmised wsing Risoncal animsl compy valualions

Weiphtiad penige ofta i [ vear)

‘Weighted svemge dividend yvicld (in %)

Weghted average ok -Soo inicoes raba [in %), bescd on ooreomie bend vield

‘Wiighvied average subeopimal mi (m %)
Weiplvied pverage vesting perisld |s pear)

by hanges in SAR durnng be vear

Farticslars.

Balance @ thse beginning of the year
Gramted duisg e vesd
Morvemenin | InfCha}

Porfeited derisg the vear

Exeered disriigg he veas

Engired dating the year
Carcliiod danng the year

Babance 1 st el of the year

s
G16k
a3.47

30 2%
&0 ST
o
i
[F i
L350
E-:l-:l 2031
S e ol Wieightod BSumber af Wirighted
plainh ATErEEE FAEIThE aplicas averago uerche
price (AR prier (EARY
M0 13 %0 (L8]] I
- L 0,134 nmn
Y24 12TS a K
16,115 H4s [LATF AR
[442K) Pl ' .
a1 3207 A FiLh

AL e wear omal 587 SARs (2072 5 978 sre wested and The balance ER319 {302 30,734) SA RS ae inrecsiod

£ SAR saivtanding wi the end of the vear by everches price

Fxgrcing praces (m LISE)

13133
e

Engserees prices (e LIEE)

1343
mi57

Hamter  Werglned sveiage Weighied mverage

oasianding al TTnL g Exenehs e {in 31 Mleeh MO exercne pnecdin
3 March 2023 contractusd life (1111 [£.51]
Ayearsp
13,148 T4 2153 XL 2153
11,F45 417 Wi 2Ok it
Ih Ry SL1T 5674 158
Sl etutamiling SAMs currmagly svsilabie

sy Weighiod mvemape Weiphiod svemge

Enprosable s Weighied sverage

oelatarding i eTLiTEng gnerch pricedin 51 Manch 2022 ewerces pice din
3 Pllarch M2F  conimched hif Lty Lis%)
o}
14,124 B4R 145 KR 315
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Payll Payments Frivate Limiial
Moles In Consalidased Fimancial 3eairmenss far (he vear onded 11 Mipreh 2020

&, Pay U Global IFY SAR Plan {2005

(¥ im Lakh, unloss sEaied ofhorwing

s ihe Payl) Globad [ Share Appresiation Righis (5 AR Schma, ne mor e 15% of tha sotal sumber of ordmary sharcs is ovailable foo B

RLERlr valet of (he A RS

T weighiled averags far valug has domm cakoulatad by an autormal vadeor usng? the Bermdan Binemal opios pricing medel, wming the llowing

Wetghbed pvenmse [ar valee ol esiiemes dne (in LSS |
Weighicd srerage sharng piies jin L55)
Waighbed swirages enorsing prico (n LISE)

an
am
4501

‘Wetphred vefge evpeciid volalily | %a), detenmined ming basorical aanied company valmtom, 41 T%
Weighted wreimgs sptien il (in yeari) .01
Weeighted sverags dividend yackd {in %) [
Waighied sverage riskfree ineves mie (in 98], based on reso rase band vickd 5 i
‘Wiitried pverage subeoplimal rae (m %) IRt
Weighted sverage vesling peried s voar ) 150
b Chianiges in SAR dunng ik year:
BiEY-33 Jaki-a3
Farticulars Mumbser af RS 2T P b il Weighirl
upisns EVTEET T rTise A B EFREE EUETTEE
price {£LAR) price [FAR]
Halancre ol the beginning of the year aE ule 105 155455 3236
Cirvestea] dusing e your 1472 s 13 Ik 550 140 38
Pelrvomag o | Bey Ol " 5 > =
Feefened dusing the vem 25955y B |8 (X209} i01.51
Exenoied during The yea ERLE 2T Bl BE (LA LIRS BRI B&
Expurgsd dursy the vear - H -, -
Cancelled derisy the pear = 5 4 -
Bslance @ ihe end of the year 155 (FF bl L |98 NP D
A1 e er el 58 50T SARE (2007 25007 ) are vesdca amd the badance 9 1K {2001 1 73918} SARS are umyewed,
£15AH extslanding al the fod of the vear by evercise price
%A Rs cwrrenily availabie
[xprming priwes (im LIS} Hureiable sl Weightel avemge
M March 2032 exeecise poice [in
LI5%)
K3 &4 332 #2306
140 26 2 5% 1 24
S, 17 19524
SAks correnily mailabie
Lercise prioes {im LI5S} Excrerable sl Weighted avesage
I Mach 2072 g s (iR
L%
E2ES 23012 K2 3h
14035 - .
T 25




Fayll Paymenis Frivase Limital
Moles o Consalidaied Fimancial 3atements for ihe vear ewded 3 Marck 2403

AL 30 Faymest Dioldings I5Y 54K Flan (1033)

¥ im Lakh, unless stated otheraine

Ulndler the Pagl) (bl BY Share Appreciation Righis (AR Scherne, na more thas 1550 o0 the total mumber of griieary sharcs is mailable for doue

i Fair valug of the 54

The wiigghtid averag G viilue b b caleulaned by an entorrad vaboe kg e Iermmndan i oplis peicuyg msedel, wig the Gl

Wiphicd seomge (v valuo s mosssremsend dade (i US$E ke Fulb
Wirighiod mverage share prico (n LESS) BL.21
Weighted mvernge exsitise prive (i LIS} e T
Wirighled moerage expectod volaniey (m %), delermined iping sloncal aanisd compary valissorns. LTS
Weighied average opeion Bk {in years) [ 1]
Wieighied mverage dnidined vickd {m %) [
\Hmmnmmr&lmﬁlmmmmmrﬂ Jib%
Weighted mvernge veb-oplimal mne (is %) -
Weighted mvemge voiling pesvd {in sies) 250
B Changes in SAR during (he year
2023-23 b, o ER

Tariiculars Number al W eigehited Mo ber of W eigghetend

apiliits HVETREE ERETTise iy EVEFRER CurrCive
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Balsese al the briisning of e year as301 TEER - 3
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Expired dusring the yem - . E =
Cancelled dunng fh yeu & ; : :
[Ealmmce at thee end of ihe year Be 151 I 35 01 TEAN

A e wear e 7470 SAH (222 i) ane vened and i balancs 353,780 (2002, 35,300 ) SAR ar mveaal.

b SR sutstandisg o the el of {he vear by evercihe prive

A Hs cmmtani ing SAHs curpeatly sveilabile
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Payl Payments Private Limited

Motes to Consalidated Fimancial Stalemenis for the year ended 31 March 2023
(¥ im Lakh, nmless stated of herwise)

8. Earmimps per eqaily share ("EF5")
The earnmps and seighted iverage sumber of oquity shares wsed n the clculation of beac caming per share are = Fllows

31 Murch 2023 M March 2032
Pl for the yesr nitributable fo the equsty shascholders (A) B2 35,15% 43
Weighied avernge number ol equity sheres oststanding dening the year {namber, in bakiks) (B} 2041006 i e |
Mominal valse of cquity shanes (1) 10,00 10,00
Hasic earning per share (¥) (A} .l 174

The Cotpamy has tssead compalionty convertible debertures (sce motd 19) and the conversion of these debentures indo equily shares has an angi=dilulive
impact on EPS. Hence, the disclosure of diluted EPS is rericied 1o basic EP% im the Simement of Prof ond 1Less,

(T spice ras been Geft Blamd iadeaifonally)



Payll Paymenis Private Limited
Mobes b0 Consolidated Fimamcinl Statoments for the year emded 31 March 2023 (% in Lakh, umless siated odberwise)

19, Related party disclosnres

In avcordance with the reqairements of Indian Accownling Standard {'Ind A5} = 24 ‘Relaled Panty Disclosisres” the names of the relaled partiss with
the aggregate transactions and yesr- end balardce with 1hem as dentified sod certificd by b manapement in the ondinary course of basiness and oni
arms" length basis ane given bebow;

Au List ol related parties

Related parties wheree control exists
i) Ulcimase Pasent Compasy - MIH Payments Hobdings 13, the Melberlasds, which is a subsidiany of Naspers Limitod, South Alrica

i} Paresd Company « MIH Indin { Mawritius) Limited
fiip Associgie Compasy - Payl) Firenee India Private Limdted {Associate 1l X2 Deeember 200:2)
i) Subsidiary Compamy = Payl! Innovation Privaie lmited (Wholly-ovwned subsidiary ) (Ineorposabed on 20 Aprd] 2023 )

Oker relabed pariies
i) Fellew subsidiaries { enfitics under commes control with whom trensactions hive tiken place during the cusrent year amd previnis yoar

= Marind Services BY
- MIH Payll BY
« Payl] Credit BY
= MIH Internet SEA Pie Limited
- Paysense Services Private Limived
- Prosus MY, [ formerly, Myriad Enternational Holdings B.YV)
= Produs Sorvices BY
= Ensinge Software Privale Limited
- M1 Payments Holding BV
= MIH Fintech Haolding BV
= MIH Iniemet Haldings BY
- Payl! Comporie IT BY
- Amsannjobs Private Limised
= Bundll Technologies Privale Limiled
= Doipe Privoie Limdicd
-0 Imdia Privage Limited
= Sabek Ao India Private Limited
= I Services 72 LLTC
= Fiooe Mobdle |imiied

i) Key manaperiend persoanel
« Mr. Ankash Mocndhen, Director
- Mr. Anirhan Mukherjoe, Chiel Executive (ffiver and Director
= Mr. Arvind Agaraal, Chicef Financial Officer and Direcior (w.e.f, 19 Deember 20035

= Mr. Muneesh Goel, Chiel Finsncinl OMicen(Lipto 28 Moveenber 20002) and [iracton|Liplo 31 Augusq 2022}
= Ms, Apursdha Aggaraal, Company soonetany




Payl! Paymenis Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Finamcinl Stavements for e year enaled 31 March 1023

B. Details of trmnsactions with related partics

Adlvancs pavment 1o ESOF trust
=MIH Imtemet bolding BY

lszue of eqmily share capital
-MIH Fayments Holding BY
Payl] Glohal 1Y, the Netherlands

Inter-corparate depositsY repavmecai) with related parties
<Payl) Finange Indin Privaie Lindied

Investment madls
«Payl) Indin Ennovations Private Limiied

Sale of services
=Amsnnnjobs Privase Lieited
-Bandl Technodogies Privale Limites
-Dulpe Privale Limited
<010 Imdin Privase Limited
-Paysense Services India Private Linsited

Dhiber operating revenug
=Payl] Pinascs India Private Linved
-Lazypay Private Limited

{hiber Income
Fayl] Credit BY
-MIH Finroch Holding BY
= Mobile Limdled
=LHLX Inedia Peivaie [ imided
-Ensiage Software Privale Limaxd
-FayL Fimance India Private Linsited

Profit on sale of non-carrent investments
- Payien=s Sérvices 'rivale Limibed

Cosd ol services
-Enstage Software Privale Limiied
«Payl! Finance Indin Private Linstel

Fimamce ol
-Payl! Finance India Privale Limited
-MIH Indiz {Maurities) Limited
Legal and professional expenses
-En=tage Sofiware Privale Limited
Manspement serviee charge
-MIH Pgvments. Holding BY

(T in Lukhl, unless stafed otherwise)

(% in Lakhk, unless stated oflcrwise]

For ihe year enided
31 Mureh 2023

[ 060.97

TS0

5.0

|
1.9t 88
Tl
1 al
43134

o, T LMY

REL R
T 30

JLa7

I 956,93

Far the year ended
31 March 2022

A243.00

54464
4, 16057

{ 3000(HE)

015
1219
e
B9
A0.9]

G344
TiHEA]

197.81
634.92

s
192,14
52728

4572443

955

o

34167

0

TR0



Payll Payments Frivate Limited

Maotes to Consolidated Fiaancial Statomests for the year emded 31 March 3023 (¥ in Lakh, unless sinted otberwise)
1% in Lok, umless stnted otherwise)
B, Dedails of iransactions with related partics [combd™) Fer ihe year enided Far the year endeil
31 March 2023 30 March M1

Redmbursement of expense incurred on behall of

= MIH Payments Holdings DY 43162
- MIH Payl] BY oM 18460
« Myrind Services 1LY @1 1381
= Prosus Services BLY 0.3 530
- MIH Fintoch [aldings BY 2768 63347
= Payl] fimamce Indio privaie limiled 4016 5944
= WITH Services FE LLE 2413.52 305G
- Sohek auto Indin private [imited - it
~Enstage Saltwar: Privale Lumited 134.93 E
Kecovery of expenses incurred on behalf of
PayL) Indin Innevstices Private Limiol 2308 -
"Hemi Padd
«Enstnge Softvure Private Lmied 154,86
Transsclions will key management persannel
- Short term emplayes benelits 41245 TH5.19
= Share bascd paymenis 137176 XY



Payll Paymemis Private Limited
aotes 1o Consolidated Financinl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 I im Lakh, unless stated atherwisc)
. Dhuistanding balances arising from salesparchases of goods and services

The following balances are outstading ol the cnd of the reponting period in relafion io trmsactions with relaled pertics:
(¥ im Lalh, unbess siated stherwisc)

Asail Asal
31 March 2023 31 Niarch 2022
(iber receivables
-MIH Pavment Holding BY . 3, TEG. IS
-Fow Mobile Limdied i.is HLBT
-MIH Fintech Huliirrp 1% M3 94,33
LI Inades Mausitias Limdled 0.1l -
«Fayll Imdia Innovations Privade Limted I8
Trude receivables
-Lasypay Privale Limited 14.20 i, B
-Payl] Fimanoe Imdin Private Limited 219 1263
slipsiage Soflware Private Linvited ERA49 .
Dichentures
<BALH Endin {Maisriimis) Limdied 4,183.39 4.283.39
(rher Minancial linbilities
Frstage Sodbware Private Limited IER 58 150,84
~MIH Entermet hoddieg BY - TH1.65
Miyriad Services BY 1.50 I.2
-MIH Fimoch hdddilg By 32 .60 H5219
SAIH Services FX LLC 1,327,095 100 T
<SAEH Inadin (Masriifus) Limsied 1,530.59 1,303,462
=Fayll Finance India Privale Limitod T.002 =
M1 Payments holding BY 42345
Guaranlees givem lo third paribes om behalfl of others
Payll Finonee [ndia Private Limised . 18,0540, 00




Fayl’ Faymets Privale Limited
Marbes fe Cansalidated Financial Seatemends Sar il pear cadied 31 March 2023

3. Tausdiia

31 acentie iy rocegmised in e Salersent of Profi ssd Los

LR

Dol Lis
Dherrend b

Teisl iy eupesss recegaised in Sisbemni of Fralli and e
M2 Revoneibalion of i exposs betwsm scoounting [eolll m spphicatle ri s effii ve ax raig as infowy

Actimnting peelil befire las

ERMIAGTY (PO 1A TR

Tan creddl 5l #atelary inosme L1 fle

Dl i #od recognised dud i oomervmism, is sbsenc of reasmable coraimity
lacome [y eapems ol elfeuive tan rwie reporied in (s Salomest of Prefit sed Lo

Dezadn of ensacd law ko, for which 2o defened o

Tax lowica:

Asacuarmesl yeur 3H14-15
Asasiuneal year TH 5-16
Aarsanesl oar ¥ 617
Amczanont voar 50718
Amgzanond voar XH 819
Ascusment year 3080
Amscnsmiend voar X021
Asscasmend joar 3020-21

(¥ in Lakh, unles wabed silarwise

3 March J023 31 Mareh 02T
6270 35, 1BLES
5 I™H 151
{15045 {BASTOF)

5548 E 857 .03

Dartaile o i credil B imabicrbed depracatim o wisch ns dofrred s is rocopesed in e fncial stoanents:

Assssmicin viar 2004-1F
Aspprmord yoar 20| -y
Amsguamscrs yoar J016-1T
Assismien! yeir 301 7-1R
Asssissen ye 20119
Asgsisamaril voar 201820
Assparaers you 2020:2 |
Asspumen year M121-32

griscal m the f it
31 Wlzreh 1LY 31 Alarch 102
[ppe——r Dol a Expiry faic e et Diclereed laa Expary e
LasCREnETd vear| {amcwumesl year |
= - 30 Wlaich 2023 2540511 F53a7 I Masch 20T
5 36 20 1350012 30 hlaich 2934 5 34l 00 | 33002 FI Mmch 1034
1559530 AATm 30 Maech 2023 1595940 40 et E} Wiaech 0TS
1180k et 30 March 2008 i2wiah RELA R X dvlarch Dika
RN B LLLE 30 March 200 A2 ELVER X March W07
- - 1 Warch 262E - - 3 Wlarch DIEL
AL T 3 March 200% T840 48 20l 50 N§ Wlarch R
PRI 1,031, A1 Silarch 2008 FRITLT 1 TH 57 B Mlaich 2000
Thaz sttt Deferrod s Exgiry die [P Thckert e Espiry dme
| BUACARTICTE EI' mﬂEI

a = PR applicalile a = Fd apphacabb:

- - ot applicable - - Mot apphicalils

. + M mpplicable . o B bl

- « M ipplicalls L ] | 1,485.33 Pl mpgacalil:

404758 LM N applicale 1553005 EX- Pl Bpplacatihe

[RECERE EIBEad N applicable [t ¥ EN [N Mo apprlecatik

134747 51008 Mol spplicable | M7 AT 15 M applicalle



Fayll Payments Private Limited
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis for e vear ended 31 March 2023
(¥ in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)

31. Hisk management framewark
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from the financinl stabements
i} Credit risk
i) Liguidity risk
iii) Market risk
The Company has frmulaied a comprehensive Risk Manapement Policy, which covers, ineralia, Credin risk, Liguidity sk and
Muarket risk of the organisation,

Thiz nole explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed 1o and how the entify manages. the risk and the related impact in the
financial statements,

Hizk Exposure arising from Mensuremeni Management

Credit risk Cash amd cash  equivalents, Trade]Ageing analysis Bank deposits, liguid funds, high
receivables amnd  other financial ass.tuj_l credit  rated  receivables  from
measured af amontised cost. banks, eredits lemit and colkateral

Liquidity risk Borrowings, Lease lisbilitics and  other|Rolling cash flow forecasts | Availability of commited eredit
financial liabilitics lines and borrowing facilities

Market risk Financial liabilities mot denominated  in|Cash flow forecasting Fareign Currency Forwards, Short
Indian Rupee (IMR) term payables, to limit fuciuations

in currency
iy Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial koss to the Company if & customer or & counter pany o a financial instrument fils 1o meet the
comractual obligntions, Cresdit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deteriomtion of credit worlhiness as
well concentration of risk. Financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivable,
investments, cash and cosh equivalents, loans ond other financial assets. The carrying amount of financial assels represents the
maximum credit risk exposere 3t the reporting date.

Financial assets that expose the entity to eredin risk

Particulars 31 March 2023 3 March 2023
(1) Low credit risk on financial reporting date
- Trade receivables 1467643 10,590 12
= Cash and cash equivalents 5240984 1.761.34
- Bank balances other than above 157464 1, 93060
= Cihigr financial assets 1102598 0.349.14
(i) Moderate rizk - -
{iiiy High risk . -
Trade receivables

Trade receivables represents receivables from high eredit rated banks and other Grancial instindions in the commtry. The Company
has mel experienced any loss il date in such receivables, Accordingly, amoumt of expected credit loss on such receivables is




Payll Paymenis Private Limited
Notes to Consolidaied Financial Statements for tle yvear ended 31 March 2023

(T in Lakh, unless siated otherwise)
Payll Payments Private Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(% in Lakh, unless stated stherwise)

31, Risk masagement framework (Cont.)
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related 10 cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by parking funds in investment grade rated instrumens
and highly rated banks amd also diversifying the deposit base by investing in different instrumenis’ banks across the country.

i) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilines
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company™s approach 1o managing liquidity is o ensure, as far as
possible, that o will have sufficient lquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under bath normal and siressed conditions,
without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company s repatation,

The Company manages ligquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves, banking Eacilities, by cominuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash fMlows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and linbilities.

As at 3 March 2023 Contractual eash Mows
Carrying amouni Within 1 vear More than 1 year
{i) Borrowings 428339 4,283.39 .
{ii} Lense Linbility 1,734.60 1,221.93 2,512.67
{iii} Trade payables 556208 5, 56208 .
{ivh Chiher financial lahifities 23,091.53 25 0 53 -
3867160 M, 158,93 2,512.67
Asat 31 March 2022 Contraciunl cansh Aows
Carrying amount Within | year Muore than 1 year
{i) Borrowings 4,283.39 . 4.283.30
{ii} Lease Liability 2463.26 G17.54 1,845.72
{iii) Trade payables 462200 446220 -
{iv} Other financial liabilitics 19, 167.06 I7.363.44 I, 203.632
A0,535.71 23,203, % T332.73

4 Ao
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Payll Payments Private Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statementis for the year ended 31 March 2023
(7 in Lakh, unless stated otherwise)
Payl! Payments Prvate Limited
Motes to Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year eaded 51 March 2023
(¥ i Lakh, anless staded alherwise)

31, Risk management framework {Cond.)
i) Market risk

Mlarket risk is the risk that the fair value or fuure cash Nows of a financial insrument will Nuctuate beeause of chanpes in marked
prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the forcign currency exchange rates, credit,
liquidity and other market changes, The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on sccoum of foreign currency exchange
rate risk.

Foreign carrency risk

The Company is subject (o foreign exchange risk primarily due to ils transoctions: incurred in foreign currencies. Considering the
couniries and economic environment in which the Company operates, ifs operations are subject 1o risks ansing from fluctuations in
exchange rales in those countries, The risk primarily relate to fluctunations in USD ageinst the functional curmency of the Company,
The Company has a treasury team which evaluates the impact of foreign mte fluctuation by assessing its exposure 1o exchange mie
risk and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company and recommends in case any forwand contracts to be
taken to cover the risk.

Expuosure bo currency risk

The details of unbedged foreign currency at the exchange rate at reponing date are:

Ji-Mar-13 Ji-Mar-22
Linbilities
Orbser financial liabilities
UsD . 129.34
- 129.34

Mote: The numbers in above table represents INR equvalent of respective foreign currency,

Sensitivity analysis

The table below represents the impact on Statement of Profit and Loss (+ Gain ! { Loss)) for 5% change in foreign currency exchange
rate ggainst INE on the uhedged exposures:

$-Mar-23 Jl-Mar-22

Addverse Faverable Adverse Favoralile
LISEVINR - - 6,47 (6,47}




Pay L Payments Private Limiied
Moles o Comalidated Financis! Staiemeats for ihe vear ended 30 Manck 3823
I i ks, e, stabed alhorwhe)

3L Contigeni lisbiliies
FLA. Clasms sgaimal the Company nol sckoss bnlped as delis

J1 Marek DIZY N1 Mignch 202X
Cother' caseen i comummer fimumy dininc oo | &3 5E7
(1] wET

[l ot 1ha cvaluations For the ahewe matiom, fhe managomesl belsreos fat the Company has svong monts m fse cascs and sooordingly, 0 adustmenis an coasidoed peocsary
B ek g

18, The Soprems Conrd on 38 Fhrnary 1009, has provded its judgment myanding inchsion of other allowsnoes such & mavel aliowances, special alowanoes, e, wahin The
expremion “taiic wapes’ For the purpess comspetaiion off corminbiion of providom fasd wnder e Empleyess’ Provident Fured msd Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 Thewe aie
tritetpeeiive ehaliceges ol application of the nid jsdpment mcluding the penod from which padgmnest wosld apply, oored] ueslisl Enploabaons o rigsad cmpaes, 0 and
these Esciors raiic wipnilican encertamiy miyanding the implementation of The waid prdgrmmi.

Ot 10 the alieesaid whoeitmnty, al of refiakl cril of the for the carlier pprivads and pendding clanification frem regelatory sethermics m (his epand, 1ha
Cipampamy s ot recodided mljuiviments, of asy, in reipoet of this matser Tor carlier vear,

1} Fiaeial invirumenls
A < Calegarioy of lirancial imabremeaic

X1 Nlarck BOZY Ji Misreh DOEY
Finantial aseets, meavaiod 51 amoribed ool

= Trmade peccivalles L GTaAS oS 02

- Cmh nsl cmds pquivabons ST A e Bl 3

« Hank balances ot than above 1LRT4 &4 183080

< ey Tridrncial dsicts | 5 5 B R45. 14
Totad Bmncial pusets 0, 08640 L6030
Finaacial Babililies, meavered ol amorlised cos)

« Men carrenl boirewmnp u 4 ZE3. 0

= Lgasg babdlity 17 &0 A0

« Trache paryables 5,560 08 AAxaEl

et homoaings 4251 4 "

= Ot Feaaneial Bubalitics 2509 43 [ R A E ]
Tt Famndial latalice ARATI A0 JLAkA TR

= Fair valess of linsssial iwdromenis
BT Fais value of Francial amcts and labslsics fhaf arg nod measarnd a1 Saicvalue (s Tair valse declosacs are requissd

31 Mlarek DOEN I Marek DREY
Carey s g o Fadr valuo arrying amoang Falr valee

Fimancial avurts, mesnared af smoribed cosl

Financisl pscty af amortsed oosl:
 Trasbe reccivablos 146TeA3 14,67 41 0,599 13 13,894 13
<+ ekl it il epnd vl 51800 B 3 AR el 2 HT61.M
Mk balasces oiser than abee 1RTH B LEMR {0 | A0
- (hkey fizancisl axicty 11028 58 1hsog 0 Q.10 04

Financil labilities, micaoernnd al smortised cosl
Funuaraaal liabialitiss ol armsitmod coul

- Mon carseni bormoamps n . 4363 % a4l
= Lase Dbty 37H 3,760 246328 246326
- Timde parpabiis 4 550 o 5,547 08 482201 482201
- Curment bomewings 428339 4,335 5 S

~ CHber inemcial lialadoes: 25091.53 25,06 53 19,167 4 19,167 06

W2 Fair vadee of financial teecss and linbadmsss ihal e seasimed & M vl

31 Mlarch 2028 A0 hiarch 2021
Ly H-ﬂll'l Falr vl L arryiag am osad Valr valug
Finamial asveis, meavared al lair vabe: thraugh Othier Ceiprebicnsie Infsme
Irrwesiimsits i Malioniil Payinesst Oerponalin of ladii THLER THLIE THMLIE TMLIE
livestments i Fedbine Private Limiled * n2s 025 -] 018

For fmancial asscis and dnancial Babsbites thal have & shoeidemm matunty (ks than dwelve monihe), the eving mmounes, which are net of smpasmeni, are o reasonabis
approsi mean of their B value. Sch iminamonis. inciude: crbh and balseces, Trade recenables. Uonirsct sseis, balances oiher item cash ard cash equivalenis, ke payables mnsd
womtract |iabalsty withoul a specific matensy

Fui' nén gl inancial habilhiies which mpprpsgasiy. §% dobenbures. and feass Bability, carmiing valies e 2 reasonabils approsamation of ifcr {ir value as b marké rale a s the
reporting dake for umiarn sssinumenis is s as elfecir misresd mie weed 1 ey Thess labileses ol amortised cost

*The shawes off Matiomal Pavimesis Compeaiion of India and of Ferbine Private Limiied s ungeoied and the Comparny beisg mineniy sharchelder. docs nat have sy ofkr abiomaly
simroe bo determine 1he Tair valoe of ssch isvesments s o 31 March 7023, Alse, the sanagoment, hased on Snancial isfsmmation avaiable, belirves thal the value of s shaes
ek i champed materinlly smce e pequissionimesimes die sad therefre the puechase value of these dhares hine been considored o il (air vabee.
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Payll Paymenis Privase Limiind
Mates 1o Comsalidased Fisincial Statemests o the year coded 30 Blanch 3023
¥ im Lak, unles sinied siberw i)
Payll Paymicnls Frivate Limiled
Sabey o Cansalidated Financial Satemsewis far (be vear ended 31 Manch 2025
A% b DLalkch, el ntated olhorwing

L Capiisl manapemrsd

Fnru:mﬂhfﬂs“mﬂﬂﬂ“wmmﬂmmmqmwhﬂnh share hoddons off the Company. Tha
pramary sbjective of The Comgany when remagisg capital s 1o safepeand i abilsy to contisus @ & godng coneom and & mainisn s opimal caplial sirucles so a8 0 masamee
sharchodder valu,

T Compaamy marages. its capiisl sirucione ool mabes adjusiments in lipht of changes in soonomic oondaans and [he reguiremsents of the Tieecal covenams. Toomaimiain or sdjesi
i capital sinschur, b Commpany may adjust the divedend paymeni o sharcholders, retien capiial o sharehedders o meae e thares. The Compey imeniions capital using a granng
itin, which is set Scii drvidicd by 1otal equity‘capeial

e i i o
3 March 2033 M March 3032
mmmlmmmm’m term deltd i {Reler A belaa ) 4133 3% 4 33
Leun ok el caidy expuivalenss (Belor note 10} (2 AR R &1 )
et debi EIE leﬂ.ﬁ
Tolwl sgaicy feapatal (Fefer B beles) IE&!I'_'H. ]
Totsl eapital and st debi TLAIATT 1 1B BT
Gearing ralin £33 L
A Tatal debs
= Mom gumreni Boamonngs {Rofer node 183 = 438139
« Uurrem bomowiags (Rofer soe LE) 438% % -
— A8RNR AL
10 = Tastall xjiidty
= Equey share capiual (Heler nete 12) BOBRT 0 203407 55
= Ol edpaity (Refia ole | X} (T80 31580
138 340,33 118,004 1

In cader b0 schieve Shid svciall obpocties, the Curmpany s capsal managonent, smongd sther thags, sine B0 emey that # mects. (inancal covoreats. stschod S0 the isbores-boaning
loans anel homosings e define capital drsiue requircmests. Breschsl in meeling the Smancial covenmats would permis the bank 5 immedasiely call kans and bomesings. There
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35, Ibages w0 micrn and ssiall caterpriees

The dues 10 migm and smnall eeicrprses as muined endor te Micm, Smalll snd Mol Enerprmo Developaen Act, 708 (BESMED A, to the exienl the Comgany hoas recened
infarmalion from ite supplicr regandmyg thair rogissalion Sk andar de MEMED AL & gven below:

31 March 2038 M March 3033
ii) the pringipal meewers mad the inteoest due thereon (s be shown sepamiely) remsining wigahd & any supplien o o the ond of

aceomnting year -
Pringipal gméust rernaireng urpaid 13862 15763
Irprest aocrued Bl Ieni sy uigad g .
{11 ac memaceinn of imieres pacd by (e bever umder MESREDY Acl, D004 ahorgg with s aivants of The paysent o o the sspglicr x s
taryord (e appaimicd day dunng cach ascoounong yo
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amu-mu-mmmm

Thg falde befow detads The changes in Compainy's Mabilitkes anisg Som fimancing setivitie, ineluding bot cash and nen-cash

Lease Habilitics Long-irrm Hhevi-lerm Tatal

berrwwings borrewisp
At B0 Aprdl 2021 243040 PRI ] 3 4800 [ GEILRY
Cash flows:
Procesds (hom bemrewing . . . .
Regayment ol harmwings - = PR T 13 000 0
Repaymem of keas: labilines [#25.73) - - (25T
San-cash:
Adoptios of lad A% 176 49748 = - 497,48
Triwresd chomen on lease lubdaes 26107 - - al.0F
A at 31 March DITY T al JHL ] & TdhAS
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Fasl Pasinents eivabe Liniited
Mobes (o Consolidated Financial Stagcments fer ihe year eoded 31 Marck 2013
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Fayll Faymenis Private Limited
Nales to Conssfidated Fimancial Statements For ibse sear emided 31 Alarchs 2023 (T im Lakh, unless stated silerwise)

i, Ratios (o disclosed as per requisement of Schedwle 110 pa e Act

L8

Farticmlars Fasr the year ended Foar the yrar ensded

3 March 2023 M March 2033
Cwrrent ratin
Curren miscts (Muncralor) 1055 14 I29IT 68
Currend linbilities | Denominaton) T AT.000 94
Carrent ratie 1.5 09
%% Change s compared 1o the preceding year TrLOTG

Explanation ler chasge in the ratia by msore tham 5% as comparcd 1o b prooeding year
Heduction m current labslity due o execution of sale of engity shees of Payll Finesce Indin Privme [ Enited.

Debd-equity Fatio

Total debv [ Nemermarn) EOIT e b, Th 05
Shanholder's equaty {Donominaion) 125 34222 115086 62
Debd-equity ratlo 0.1 LA
e Changs @ comparcd Lo the procodsg year 1%

Explanation for chamge in the ratéo by more tham 35% as compared o tle preceding year:

Reducibons in detd due o sepayment of inle-corporale deposit received from Payl! Finanes lndia Private Limited o b of fresh eqaily shase
capital during the yew

Delsl service covernpe rafio

Earnings available for debi service (Munerai * 1BE B4 MH TS
[rebi =zrvice {Denominalory & 45280 45707
kel service covernge ratin 04 ThE
% Chonge os comparsd 80 the peeceding vesr A

Explanation for change in tle ratio by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year
I the previsus year company ermed profil on sake of Fop-cuieesl invesieenls (cageptional B mmousding o © 22.507.25 lakhs dus whish
camings in the previous vear were excepiionally higher,

* Earning For 1ebi Service = Net Profic afier txes + Famanos Cest + Deproctalzon
# Diebt service = Interest and Lease payments + Principal repayments

Helurn an equity ratie

Profil / (loss} for the periadfvenr (Numeraior) 421,70 5, 1BH. 83
Sharcholdes oguity { Denominalor 130,214.42 102, 5a4. 5949
Relurn on cquigy 1% 12%
%4 Change ns compared o the preceding year LR

Explamation for change i the rtio by more than 25% a8 compared o the preceding yvear:
In the previous year company camed prafl co sale of non-curmenl invements (exocptional fcm) amounting b £ 22,507 25 khs duc wiskch
carmings in the previoss venr wire excepiomally higher

Trude receiva bles twrmover ralis

et sabes (Mamaraid) 2SI SEEARD &5
Avernge irnde recenvable {Dencaminmon * 12637734 B 155 &0
Trade rocrivables jwrsover ratia 237 24
% Uhange as compares (o the preéceding year $E1%

* Avernge trade receivables = [(Openimg balance + Casing balance) / 2} N

e g %



Payl Payments Privete Limbted

Nales to Consofitlaied Fimancial Statements for (b year eniled 30 Sanch 2003 (T im Lakh, unless staled ollorwisch
Trude payables tmrmover ralio
Furchases of services and ofher oapenscs 262 4501 191, 732.43
Ayempe rade payable (Denominaior) * 11,635.31 00000
Trade payahbles urnoyer ratio 16 HE
e Virmnes <& it

I

* Avorage imide payables = ({Oponing halance + Closing: balanoc) / 2)

Mol capital turnover rafio

el sales (Mumeror) 255 H.13 208 ABD65
Working capital { Desonsinabor) 232940 (b, 128 20
Nl eapital turiever ralio nz (50.7)
%4 Chamge o compancd b0 the peeccding vear 3L s

Explanation for change in ihe eatéo by more tham 25% as compared to ibe preceding year:
Eevenue growth along, with hagher efTicsney oo working capital imsproveenent Bas resaled im an msprovoment m the saiu.

Net profit ratio

Proftl / (loss] For ghe ponesdyvem (Mumerator) azl.m EXREE &
Mt sales {Denominaiory IO 013 S ARD LGS
Wl profil ratio " 1%
s Change i compasal t the preceding vem AR, T

Explanation for change in e ratio by more than 25% as comparcd o (be preccding year
Im the previous year company esmed profit on sale of sos-curmenl investmenis (exceptional item] smossting o £ X2 507 35 lakhs due which
Eamings in tse previcus yvesr were exceplionally higher,

Helwrm on capital cmployed

Emming before inierest and tnes (Mumermorn) 62170 ELEEE L
Capital employed { Denonsinaton|* 131,385,810 M6 606,77
Helmrs on eapital cmployed "% 8%
%% Chanpe as compared i the preceding vear Q¥

Explanation for change im the mtio by more than 35% as compared o the precoding year;

In the previous year company cansed prodii on sale of non-currenl investments (cxcoptionsl dem} amounting e £ 2250725 lakhs duc which
carnings im the previces venr wore exceptiomally higher.

* Capital Ensploved = Total cguity + Tidal deba

Reiurn on investmeni

Eaming befione inberest and taves {Mumernalon) : 55,188 83
Chaimng otal st = 163.667.71
Keiurn oo luvesimeni 0.r 1p50%
% Change s comparad 1o the preceding year (L0

(T gpew Baaw been imenriomalll kol Blinkl |
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Paylll Payments Privise Limbed
Poirs be Conselidlated Financial Stalements B the year ended 31 Manch 1023

A0 (A)  Stmterrent of net assers, peofin and loss md ether compoehersave inoome aftn botablds s o and noa-contilling imencit

Siare in atier Share in ioinl
Ned Awsels Shaare im prafil aed Lass oo i
Name of the rtity As % of As % al As % of A ol

conunlidainl nwslindated rumsdstatad coaniililalnd

ol Asseix | Amouni proli aed loes | Asoung |01 Ampanl  |[TH Amsuni
IMarens . b

Tayrments Private Limied Tora] 125371 14 L T [ BTE e KL
bsidiary . =

Parl] Incha Irmorvataens Privaie Limined s 241 it 1274 P = A% 127445
1% Fimancs Indsi Prvate Limiliad i : EIL TR [ I S IR

40 By Addatlenal regalatery infermatien not disclosed elsewhere in 1he lnasciake
a) The: Holding Compary and its sssoiaie company dozs not bave any Benami property and no procoadings haes bosn ssitsiied of pending sgaini the Felding
Censpary s vis sl oo pary Tof balding any Benami property, undsr the Berami Tranesctions (Prokabilions] A, 1968 (45 of 1988} and the el
maks thergander

hi The Helding Compamy and i ssotale compasy doss Bol kave my charge which is ver to be registered with ROC beyond the ssatusory penisd

©) The Helding Company and fs msoiaie company has not iraded or invested in Crvplo cerrency of Vil Certency duting e cebrenl and previous firascil
year

i) The ialding Company and s maniale company kas net sdvanced or providel ke o or mvested feands = eny eulitp{ics]) inchaling Ssciga enliies
{Imermodiaries) or 1o any ether porsondx), wish the mderstamding thai 1he Imemedhany shall
(npdivectly e irdirectly lendd er mvest in oiber persors or eniities idemtified in asy manner whatsoever by or on beball' of the Holding Company and sz
et Company |Linmate Heseficiaries) or
() inide any guamnle:, seoenity of the like w er en behald of the Uhimaie Beneflcanes

] The Holding Company mad i wisoislo compary b nnt reccived any Tued hem any persosiy) of entety(ssi), inclsding frcign emlings {Fandieg Pay ) wisk
e undoisianthing {whether seconded in wriling of o@arwisg) Sal the Hoklng Comgany g its dosiale company all
(ipdirectly o indirectly keedd o ivowsd in other persons o eniities identilied in amy smner whatsosver by oron heball ol the Fundeg Farty | et
Bemcliciancs] or
(i provvide eny guarmate:, seourity of (he like on behalf of the Liltimate Beselioanes,

£ The Hobding Comgany sl its assoisio compary bas ned snderiaken any transactsen which 15 el recoeded m The honls of accousis that has been
sgmendercd o desclosed 28 income during, the vear in s Lay assismenis under the Bscome Tax Acl. 199 (sach o search of survey of asy Slhcr relevan)
eerwinines of the Incomas Tax Aci, 1961

£ The Hokfing Comgany s ils asseiase oomparry has nol been declased a “Willul Defauhor’ by any bank or inancia institution s deffied umbor the
Companies Act, 200 3} e consoriium thereef. in accordance with the gaidelines on willul defasiters isseed by the Reserve Bank ol India

i} The Holding Comgemy and ity asssiats company has compliad with the surmbes of Rryers prescnbed ender classe [E7) ol sectssn I ol the Act read wath
Companecs (Festiction oo mamber ol Layer) Rules, 2007,

4T} The Holding Compaay has no did ol bave eny leg-lem controcts scheding denvalive coatragts for which fese were any malerial fmeseeable o & o

I belmeh 2003 Fuitber, ihe Associaly Company his made provescn on kehp-ieiin eoslrscls 4 jajiinad uhder apglicalde laws of scoomniing simsdards and
i b amy derivalive oosiracis as al 31 harch 7021

& (- 8 =



Payl! Paymicnts Privale Limdted
Mobes fo Consalidated Financial Statements Far the year esded 31 March 2013 (T im Lakhk, unless staned otherwise)

41 Events ooturving after (ke reporlisg period
O |5t Al 2023, ghe compasy bas transferned the businesses off Data Insights, Payouls, SMB Losding Asssfancs Services aml Neohank ssg {ghat i,
technologySorrespondost sorvices rolating b0 kadisg activilses of basks and lnanci@l imssiniions] fros Payll Paymests Privaie Limiiad to PayL! India
Innovalions Private Limited. The same has boen acquired by way of Slumep Sale as paf seetion 500 of the lscome Tax Act, 1961 The company has
moquired Assets of ¥ 105,78 4R BE1 and Liabilittes of £ 910091 468 and purchase considomlion paid to soquess the bussess 18 8 153291654, The
dilfezrence betweon perchase considemtion paid and nol axwls scquircd i rocordod as Goodwill amoanting o & 55,34 142

SAR Lending Assistance Sorvices selers o bechaology! logistics' comesponden] sorvioes rolating (o Banking activitics of banis,

Menbanking refers io iechnology! logistice/oomresponden services relating 1o lending activities of banks md financmg mtitulsons including amy
mmasgements with merchants and third partics for implementing any londisg flows in collabomtion with bank and finamcial institiion.

42 Om 17 Seplemnder 2021, the Company fial an applicatios with R3] o sthorization o conlsmss opcrpting 55 3 paymenl aggrepaior in sccondance with
the diuldelings on Regulacksh of Payimenl Agprepaiess snd Paymen Calenms daled 17 March 2020 aad e Peyeneni and Seitlemem Sysicns Ac,
2007, &5 smended from time 1o time. On 10 Jaruary 2023, KRB reiunesd the applecation and required the Comgany o apply affesh within 120 days
freem 10 Jaremary 2003 alter addresseeg e congems of REI which ncluded, simpdificsion of ihe sharcholding sinsciure, comprchensive review amd
tghtening of the merchan onboarding and mantioning processes, and conlaming complumnce with the Digitsl Lending Guidelines dmed Seplember 2,
2022 wvwed by the RBL The Compasy his taken the necessary sieps and las also Dled o apphicstion afresh on 10 Apnil 302, wisich i cumrently msder
oo idezmtion with the RBL

43 Tramsfer pricing
The Geoup his & comprehamsive system of maimcaance of infennstion ead documents 52 rogeired by the wansfer pricang kegeliton ander seclions %2-
SF of the Incomesimy Act, 1961, As the lyw requines existence of such infemation and documeniation io b conompoesnenus in axlure, the Goup
appainis mdepondem conssltanis for conducting 8 Transfer Pricing Study to detormise whether the mansactions with nssocise emerprises are
undertaken, during the finascizl year, on an “anm's kength basis®. The adjustments, if sy, arising from ssch mnsfer pricing stedy shall be socomsed
o as and when the study is completed for the cumen finascial year. Hosever, the mansgement is of the opinion thal its inlermabonal Gransactions ane
of anes” loagth and the aforesaid kegisiaiea will nol have asy material impact on the finaccial simements,

44 The provisions of Comporsie Social Respossihility are applicable s ihe Company, s ihe critenia mentioned under Seciion 133 of ghe Compandzs Act,
2003 i fulfilled. The Company hes formulabed the C5E commiliee a5 per the requirements of the Act and the Board stso approved the CSH podicy,
indicaling the list of CSR sctivities that can be ondermaken by the Compam:. The averape of last three (1) years peolits of the Compamy was segative,
Bence the Company was naot required &0 spend sy smosst oo C5H setivitles.

4% The Group did ol have any long-term contracis including derivative contracts for wisich there weneeny maierial forcsecable losses,

A6 The (iroup does sol bave any Besai propenty, where amy procecding has boen mstisbed of pending agaissd the Grosep foe holding am' Bonan property
ey i Bonanss Teassactions {Probibition] Act, [988 sl rules srode Sereunder

47 Thene were no ssncunts which were required 1o be transferred 1o ihe Inveiter Education ssd ProtectionFund by the Group.

4% Previnns vear's ameamts have bom regrouped and feclassificd 0 make them comparablo wish cunond vear's amounts, where mocessany.
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